










Page 12
SEQ  CHECK #   DATE DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #  SUB-TOTAL   AMOUNT
20 EFT - 538 10/22/2021 Lingo

Telephone/WTP1 60-5201                    89.82 $89.82

21 EFT - 539 10/30/2021 Fusion Cloud Services, LLC
Telephone/WTP2 60-5201                  242.41 $242.41

$37,004.55

Manual Checks for Ratification - October 2021.xlsx



CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT  
 UNAUDITED

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FOR ONE AND TEN MONTHS; PERIOD ENDING ON OCTOBER 31, 2021
GENERAL FUND

MILL LEVY  33.834

A B C D E F G H I J K L

   ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE REMAINDER REMAINDER OF VARIANCE FULL BUDGET VARIANCE 
OCTOBER OCTOBER MONTH TO YTD YTD YEAR TO OF THE YEAR OF THE BETWEEN YEAR ANNUAL FULL YEAR

DATE DATE FORECAST YEAR COLUMN FORECAST FORECAST WITH
   BUDGET   G AND H ANNUAL BUDGET COMMENTS
REVENUES    

  
4110 General Property Tax 3,970$              111,476          (107,506)     5,596,999       5,607,019     (10,020)         10,020             -                          10,020           5,607,019            5,607,019       -                             
4120 Specific Ownership Tax 46,724$            40,417            6,307          458,690          404,167        54,523           71,310             80,833                (9,523)            530,000               485,000          45,000                    
4130 Tax Penalties & Interest 226$                 1,184              (958)            9,124              11,841          (2,717)           5,085               2,368                  2,717             14,209                 14,209            -                             
4135 Abatements -$                      (3,734)             3,734          (4,883)             (112,140)       107,257         (5,117)              -                          (5,117)            (10,000)                (112,140)         102,140                  
4210 Interest Earned 91$                   1,700              (1,609)         6,715              17,000          (10,285)         1,285               3,400                  (2,115)            8,000                   20,400            (12,400)                  
4240 Miscellaneous Income 265$                 500                 (235)            59,857            26,000          33,857           143                  500                     (357)               60,000                 26,500            33,500                    Auction Proceeds, $18K; Truck Trade in $24K; Kubota 
4430 Road Sweeping Fees 200$                 100                 100             3,700              3,300            400               -                      200                     (200)               3,700                   3,500              200                        
4440 Castle Pines HOA Landscaping 15,180$            15,180            -                  151,795          151,795        -                    7,885               30,359                (22,474)          159,680               182,154          (22,474)                  

 TOTAL REVENUES 66,655              166,822          (100,167)     6,281,998       6,108,981     173,016         90,610             117,661               (27,050)          6,372,608            6,226,642       145,966                  

 EXPENDITURES  

5111 Salaries & Wages 44,768$            71,813            27,044        626,204          806,733        180,530         126,573           158,366               31,792           752,777               965,099          212,322                  6 FTE Positions not filled YTD; 3 less seasonals in 202
5120 Mandatory Payroll Obligation 7,573$              11,469            3,895          109,528          143,408        33,880           20,422             23,195                2,773             129,950               166,603          36,653                    Work Comp Audit Adj 2020, $3,314
5130 Health and Disability 9,455$              13,120            3,665          100,486          131,197        30,711           22,314             26,239                3,925             122,800               157,436          34,636                    Health Ins Dividend 2020 $7,131
5150 Director's Fees -$                      -                      -                  4,700              4,500            (200)              1,300               1,500                  200                6,000                   6,000              -                             

TOTAL PERSONNEL 61,796              96,401            34,605        840,918          1,085,838     244,920         170,609           209,300               38,691           1,011,527            1,295,138       283,611                  

5161 Legal 5,006$              13,333            8,328          69,431            133,333        63,903           35,269             26,667                (8,603)            104,700               160,000          55,300                    
5162 Accounting -$                      125                 125             -                     1,250            1,250             1,500               250                     (1,250)            1,500                   1,500              -                             
5163 Auditing 2,160$              4,775              2,615          22,160            24,400          2,240             2,240               -                          (2,240)            24,400                 24,400            -                             
5164 Engineering (623)$                5,600              6,223          28,938            56,000          27,062           13,262             11,200                (2,062)            42,200                 67,200            25,000                    
5165 Data Processing and Other -$                      759                 759             6,796              7,590            794               2,312               1,518                  (794)               9,108                   9,108              -                             
5166 Consulting Services 10,435$            4,074              (6,361)         45,394            37,463          (7,931)           5,784               8,147                  2,363             51,178                 45,610            (5,568)                    

TOTAL CONTRACT SERVICES 16,978              28,666            11,688        172,718          260,036        87,318           60,368             47,782                (12,586)          233,086               307,818          74,732                    

Blackbaud -  October 2021 CPMD Rev - Exp.xlsx 11/26/2021 5:55 PM 1



CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT  
 UNAUDITED

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FOR ONE AND TEN MONTHS; PERIOD ENDING ON OCTOBER 31, 2021
GENERAL FUND

A B C D E F G H I J K L
 

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE REMAINDER REMAINDER OF VARIANCE FULL BUDGET VARIANCE 
OCTOBER OCTOBER MONTH TO YTD YTD YEAR TO OF THE YEAR OF THE BETWEEN YEAR ANNUAL FULL YEAR

DATE DATE FORECAST YEAR COLUMN FORECAST FORECAST WITH
 BUDGET   G AND H ANNUAL BUDGET COMMENTS

  
Utilities

5201 Telephone 2,475$              2,870              395             25,360            28,700          3,340             7,004               5,740                  (1,264)            32,364                 34,440            2,076                     
5202 Electricity and Power 881$                 991                 110             8,795              9,905            1,110             1,558               1,981                  423                10,353                 11,886            1,533                     
5203 Gas and Heat 103$                 285                 182             3,931              5,488            1,557             1,197               1,195                  (2)                   5,128                   6,683              1,555                     
5204 Trash Removal 467$                 484                 18               2,927              4,842            1,914             1,103               968                     (134)               4,030                   5,810              1,780                     

Total Utilities 3,925                4,630              704             41,014            48,935          7,921             10,861             9,884                  (977)               51,875                 58,819            6,944                     
General Overhead -                      

5221 Office Supplies 1,648$              1,746              98               18,400            17,458          (942)              2,518               3,492                  974                20,918                 20,950            32                          
5222 Membership Fees 222$                 368                 146             3,511              5,583            2,072             (222)                 675                     897                3,289                   6,258              2,969                     
5223 Subscriptions, Publication & Ads 236$                 625                 389             5,113              6,250            1,137             2,387               1,250                  (1,137)            7,500                   7,500              -                             
5224 Permits & Filing Charges -$                      -                      -                  -                     90                 90                 90                    -                          (90)                 90                        90                   -                             
5225 Postage Freight & Delivery Services 251$                 375                 124             2,903              3,750            847               1,448               750                     (698)               4,351                   4,500              149                        
5226 Training Tuition Fee 270$                 775                 505             1,142              24,725          23,583           15,708             -                          (15,708)          16,850                 24,725            7,875                     BB Conference cancelled
5227 Travel, Meeting and Meals 1,264$              1,000              (264)            8,859              15,840          6,981             5,781               5,200                  (581)               14,640                 21,040            6,400                     
5228 Public Relations 2,629$              -                      (2,629)         25,098            49,200          24,102           12,902             1,800                  (11,102)          38,000                 51,000            13,000                    
5229 Community Event 1,146$              -                      (1,146)         38,760            24,000          (14,760)         (0)                     -                          0                    38,760                 24,000            (14,760)                  
5230 Operating Supplies 544$                 4,000              3,456          8,087              18,000          9,913             7,153               2,000                  (5,153)            15,240                 20,000            4,760                     
5231 Software 1,090$              450                 (640)            11,855            8,733            (3,122)           178                  3,300                  3,122             12,033                 12,033            -                             
5232 Supplies - Shop & Misc. Consumables -$                      1,667              1,667          4,478              16,667          12,189           10,522             3,333                  (7,189)            15,000                 20,000            5,000                     
5250 County Treasurer Collection Fees 63$                   1,672              1,609          84,030            84,105          75                 75                    -                          (75)                 84,105                 84,105            -                             
5251 Elections -$                      -                      -                  5,021              -                   (5,021)           -                      -                          -                     5,021                   -                      (5,021)                    
5260 Insurance 2,456$              -                      (2,456)         40,323            37,177          (3,146)           -                      -                          -                     40,323                 37,177            (3,146)                    
5270 Miscellaneous Expenses -$                      778                 778             4,156              7,783            3,627             3,019               1,557                  (1,462)            7,175                   9,340              2,165                     
5280 Equipment and Storage Rent 458$                 315                 (143)            5,423              3,842            (1,581)           314                  1,415                  1,101             5,737                   5,257              (480)                       

Total General Overhead 12,277              13,771            1,494          267,162          323,203        56,041           61,870             24,772                (37,099)          329,033               347,975          18,942                    

Blackbaud -  October 2021 CPMD Rev - Exp.xlsx 11/26/2021 5:55 PM 2



CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT  
 UNAUDITED

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FOR ONE AND TEN MONTHS; PERIOD ENDING ON OCTOBER 31, 2021
GENERAL FUND

A B C D E F G H I J K L
    

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE REMAINDER REMAINDER OF VARIANCE FULL BUDGET VARIANCE 
OCTOBER OCTOBER MONTH TO YTD YTD YEAR TO OF THE YEAR OF THE BETWEEN YEAR ANNUAL FULL YEAR

DATE DATE FORECAST YEAR COLUMN FORECAST FORECAST WITH
  BUDGET   G AND H ANNUAL BUDGET COMMENTS

Repairs & Maintenance
5301 Supplies - Equipment -$                      167                 167             -                     1,667            1,667             2,000               333                     (1,667)            2,000                   2,000              -                             
5303 Gas and Oil 4,126$              4,050              (76)              47,603            53,900          6,297             14,628             8,331                  (6,297)            62,231                 62,231            -                             
5305 Service - Vehicle 3,056$              6,135              3,079          49,077            61,005          11,928           23,043             11,115                (11,928)          72,120                 72,120            -                             
5306 Services - O & M 1,535$              4,771              3,236          50,993            37,977          (13,016)         -                      4,314                  4,314             50,993                 42,291            (8,702)                    Elec Repr Off/Power Outage; Garage Door Maint/Repr
5310 Small Equipment Items< than 5000 -$                      3,100              3,100          13,547            20,250          6,703             6,285               3,600                  (2,685)            19,832                 23,850            4,018                     

Total Repairs & Maintenance 8,716                18,223            9,507          161,221          174,799        13,578           45,955             27,693                (18,262)          207,176               202,492          (4,684)                    
 

Total General Government 103,693            161,690          57,998        1,483,033       1,892,811     409,778         349,664           319,431               (30,233)          1,832,697            2,212,242       379,545                  

Public Works    
5401 Electricity 1,115$              1,450              335             12,861            12,900          39                 3,440               3,100                  (340)               16,301                 16,000            (301)                       
5402 Rental Equipment 140$                 175                 35               5,600              6,852            1,252             5,180               5,452                  272                10,780                 12,304            1,524                     
5403 Landscape ROW 7,704$              21,750            14,046        150,116          267,700        117,584         36,240             3,800                  (32,440)          186,356               271,500          85,144                    
5404 CPMD - Water Usage 2,641$              2,400              (241)            32,489            34,790          2,301             2,898               3,500                  602                35,387                 38,290            2,903                     
5421 Street Sweeping -$                      10,800            10,800        56,469            141,200        84,731           53,531             18,800                (34,731)          110,000               160,000          50,000                    
5422 Street Repair -$                      8,618              8,618          34,931            204,562        169,631         59,069             8,618                  (50,451)          94,000                 213,180          119,180                  
5423 Street Light Repair -$                      1,667              1,667          8,695              16,667          7,971             3,305               3,333                  29                  12,000                 20,000            8,000                     
5440 Snow Removal 10,254$            3,800              (6,454)         81,255            75,870          (5,385)           5,391               21,000                15,609           86,646                 96,870            10,224                    
5450 Storm Drainage 553$                 13,500            12,947        42,781            108,000        65,219           32,219             -                          (32,219)          75,000                 108,000          33,000                    
5461 Asphalt Overlay 517,567$           -                      (517,567)     955,538          500,000        (455,538)       59,400             -                          (59,400)          1,014,938            500,000          (514,938)                MPI Schedule D ($1,351,890)($336,952 to 2022)
5462 Curb & Gutter (new) - CIP 40$                   -                      (40)              13,693            50,000          36,307           16,307             -                          (16,307)          30,000                 50,000            20,000                    
5463 Asphalt Patching - CIP 2,250$              -                      (2,250)         419,995          125,000        (294,995)       21,998             -                          (21,998)          441,993               125,000          (316,993)                MPI Schedules A, B, & C ($589,538)$147K variance
5465 Crestone C&G; Asphalt; St Lights x 2 -$                      -                      -                  -                     375,000        375,000         -                      -                          -                     -                           375,000          375,000                  
5467 Cape Seal for CIP -$                      -                      -                  -                     215,000        215,000         -                      -                          -                     -                           215,000          215,000                  
5475 Crack Seal - CIP -$                      -                      -                  298,949          100,000        (198,949)       40,000             -                          (40,000)          338,949               100,000          (238,949)                Schmidt 2020 Agreement
5477 General Expense - CIP 14,392$            -                      (14,392)       129,903          50,000          (79,903)         15,397             -                          (15,397)          145,300               50,000            (95,300)                  Olsson Agreement - Apprvd by Brd, May 26, 2021
5478 Road Shoulder Work - CIP -$                      -                      -                  -                     75,000          75,000           20,000             -                          (20,000)          20,000                 75,000            55,000                    
5481 Traffic Control 634$                 -                      (634)            1,268              100,000        98,732           -                      -                          -                     1,268                   100,000          98,732                    
5464 Trees for ROW Areas Installed/Screening 5,000$              -                      (5,000)         18,989            20,000          1,011             1,011               -                          (1,011)            20,000                 20,000            -                             
5466 CPHA Gate 1 Signage -$                      -                      -                  -                     20,000          20,000           20,000             -                          (20,000)          20,000                 20,000            -                             

Total Public Works 562,291            64,160            (498,131)     2,263,533       2,498,541     235,007         395,385           67,603                (327,781)        2,658,918            2,566,144       (92,774)                  

Blackbaud -  October 2021 CPMD Rev - Exp.xlsx 11/26/2021 5:55 PM 3



CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT  
 UNAUDITED  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FOR ONE AND TEN MONTHS; PERIOD ENDING ON OCTOBER 31, 2021
GENERAL FUND

A B C D E F G H I J K L
     

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE REMAINDER REMAINDER OF VARIANCE FULL BUDGET VARIANCE 
OCTOBER OCTOBER MONTH TO YTD YTD YEAR TO OF THE YEAR OF THE BETWEEN YEAR ANNUAL FULL YEAR

DATE DATE FORECAST YEAR COLUMN FORECAST FORECAST WITH
  BUDGET   G AND H ANNUAL BUDGET COMMENTS

7703 Replace Utility Bed Truck #17 (2015 GMC) -$                      -                      -                  6,999              10,000          3,001             -                      -                          -                     6,999                   10,000            3,001                     
7711 UPS System for Office -$                      -                      -                  12,119            -                   (12,119)         -                      -                          -                     12,119                 -                      (12,119)                  Unbudgeted Item
7721 Security System Analysis/Upgrade 16,061$            (16,061)       78,794            140,000        61,206           21,206             -                          (21,206)          100,000               140,000          40,000                    Apprvd by Brd 2/24/21; Sec Sys $58,297
7728 Dump Trailer -$                      -                      -                  9,655              10,000          345               -                      -                          -                     9,655                   10,000            345                        
7732 2021 John Deere Gator RTV -$                      -                      -                  17,408            15,700          (1,708)           -                      -                          -                     17,408                 15,700            (1,708)                    
7733 2021 John Deere Gator RTV w/Cab -$                      -                      -                  22,969            26,027          3,058             -                      -                          -                     22,969                 26,027            3,058                     
7734 Roadway Professional Svcs Agrmnt 4,670$              (4,670)         31,443            25,740          (5,703)           -                      -                          -                     31,443                 25,740            (5,703)                    
7739 GMC Pick up Truck 2021 3500HD -$                      -                      -                  60,548            64,610          4,062             -                      -                          -                     60,548                 64,610            4,062                     
7740 Capital Contingency -$                      -                      -                  -                     -                   -                    -                      100,000               100,000         -                           100,000          100,000                  
7741 Project Contingency -$                      -                  -                     287,000        287,000         -                      -                          -                     -                           287,000          287,000                  
7747 Sand Storage Facility 280$                 -                      (280)            2,315              -                   (2,315)           -                      -                          -                     2,315                   -                      (2,315)                    Side Walls for Ice Slicer Storage
7748 Avant Compact Loader -$                      -                      -                  68,164            66,834          (1,330)           -                      -                          -                     68,164                 66,834            (1,330)                    
7750 Scag Standing Mower - 48" -$                      -                      -                  8,085              8,082            (3)                  -                      -                          -                     8,085                   8,082              (3)                           
7751 Scag Riding Mower - 61" -$                      -                      -                  13,017            13,017          -                    -                      -                          -                     13,017                 13,017            -                             
7768 Phone System (Replacement/Upgrade) -$                      -                      -                  -                     12,000          12,000           12,000             -                          (12,000)          12,000                 12,000            -                             

Total Capital Outlay 21,011$            -                      (21,011)       331,516          679,010        347,494         33,206             100,000               66,794           364,722               779,010          414,288                  
 

 Expenditures Before Transfer Out 686,995            225,850          (461,145)     4,078,082       5,070,361     992,279         778,255           487,034               (291,221)        4,856,337            5,557,396       701,059                  
  

6515 Transfer Out  to Enterprise Fund -$                      -                      -                  -                     -                   -                    360,000           360,000               -                     360,000               360,000          -                             

Total Expenditures 686,995            225,850          (461,145)     4,078,082       5,070,361     992,279         1,138,255        847,034               (291,221)        5,216,337            5,917,396       701,059                  

 Excess of Revenue Over (under) Expenditures (620,340)           (59,028)           (561,312)     2,203,916       1,038,620     1,165,295      (1,047,645)       (729,374)             (318,271)        1,156,271            309,246          847,025                  
 

Beginning Fund Balance   16,184,463     15,570,171   614,292         16,184,463      15,570,171          614,292         16,184,463          15,570,171     614,292                  Adj Fund Balance per 2020 Audit
  

Ending Fund Balance  18,388,379     16,608,791   1,779,587$    15,136,818$    14,840,797$        296,021$       17,340,734$        15,879,417$    1,461,317$             

 

Blackbaud -  October 2021 CPMD Rev - Exp.xlsx 11/26/2021 5:55 PM 4



CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT  
 UNAUDITED

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FOR ONE AND TEN MONTHS; PERIOD ENDING ON OCTOBER 31, 2021
ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER & SEWER

A B C D E F G H I J K L

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE REMAINDER REMAINDER OF VARIANCE FULL BUDGET VARIANCE 
OCTOBER OCTOBER MONTH TO YTD YTD YEAR TO OF THE YEAR OF THE BETWEEN YEAR ANNUAL FULL YEAR

DATE DATE FORECAST YEAR COLUMN FORECAST FORECAST WITH
  BUDGET   G AND H ANNUAL BUDGET COMMENTS

 REVENUES                
4210 Interest 88$                  1,300              (1,212)             4,815               13,000            (8,185)            585                   2,600                (2,015)              5,400                15,600            (10,200)                 
4240 NSF & New Acct Set-up 600$                308                 292                 4,200               3,083              1,117             100                   617                   (517)                 4,300                3,700              600                       
4245 Misc Income 100$                -                     100                 62,756             24,600            38,156           300                   -                       300                  63,056              24,600            38,456                   Truck Trade-In @ $20K; 2 Tap Fees; Scrap Metal Recycle

4250 Groundwater Rights Sale - CC@CP -$                     -                     -                      100,000           100,000          -                    -                       -                       -                       100,000            100,000          -                            
4255 Extraterritorial Wastewater Treatmnt -$                     -                     -                      1,500,000        1,500,000       -                    -                       -                       -                       1,500,000         1,500,000       -                            
4260 Meter Sales 860$                860                 -                      15,910             13,330            2,580             -                       1,720                (1,720)              15,910              15,050            860                       
4270 Late Fee on Water Charges 3,303$             2,083              1,220              22,936             20,833            2,103             2,223                4,167                (1,944)              25,159              25,000            159                       
4341 Transfer In - General Funds -$                     -                     -                      -                      -                     -                    360,000            360,000            -                       360,000            360,000          -                            
4360 Sanctuary Sewer Fees -$                     -                     -                      6,228               6,073              155                -                       -                       -                       6,228                6,073              155                       
4411 Misc. Water Service Revenue -$                     500                 (500)                21,412             4,500              16,912           3,588                500                   3,088               25,000              5,000              20,000                   Additional Hyd Water Usage over budget

4412 Water Service Fees/Usage 119,242$         105,218          14,024            1,686,185        1,646,279       39,906           44,501              64,407              (19,906)            1,730,686         1,710,686       20,000                   
4413 Water Service Fees/Base Rate 56,790$           54,955            1,835              557,677           549,552          8,126             112,438            109,910            2,527               670,115            659,462          10,653                   
4414 CPMD - Water Usage 2,641$             2,400              241                 32,489             34,790            (2,301)            4,801                3,500                1,301               37,290              38,290            (1,000)                   
4416 Village Lake Pump House Usage 7,942$             5,000              2,942              97,428             143,157          (45,729)          -                       -                       -                       97,428              143,157          (45,729)                 
4417 Capital Improvement Fee 18,164$           17,597            567                 178,147           175,970          2,177             35,941              35,194              747                  214,088            211,164          2,924                     
4430 Revenue Rebate - IREA -$                     -                     -                      10,302             19,000            (8,698)            -                       -                       -                       10,302              19,000            (8,698)                   
4460 Effluent Charges -$                     5,841              (5,841)             62,858             106,945          (44,087)          2,142                2,474                (332)                 65,000              109,419          (44,419)                 
4500 Sewer Fee 81,299$           78,777            2,522              797,341           787,770          9,571             160,789            157,554            3,235               958,130            945,324          12,806                   
4510 Storm Drainage Fee 13,765$           13,345            420                 135,044           133,450          1,594             27,230              26,690              540                  162,274            160,140          2,134                     

Total Revenues 304,794           288,185          16,609            5,295,728        5,282,332       13,396           754,638            769,333            (14,695)            6,050,366         6,051,665       (1,299)                   

 EXPENDITURES    
Operating Expenditures  

Personnel    
5111 Salaries & Wages 61,526$           75,046            13,520            587,144           721,758          134,614         107,891            161,277            53,386             695,035            883,035          188,000                 6 FTE Positions not filled YTD
5120 Mandatory Payroll Obligation 8,871$             11,985            3,114              99,321             127,762          28,441           20,701              24,165              3,464               120,022            151,927          31,905                   Work Comp Audit Adj 2020, $2,500
5130 Health and Disability 8,641$             11,771            3,130              86,255             117,713          31,458           25,337              23,543              (1,794)              111,592            141,256          29,664                   Health Ins Dividend 2020 $6,323
5150 Director Fee -$                     -                     -                      4,700               4,500              (200)               1,300                1,500                200                  6,000                6,000              -                            

Total Personnel 79,038             98,802            19,764            777,420           971,733          194,314         155,229            210,485            55,256             932,649            1,182,218       249,569                 

Contract Services
5161 Legal -$                     3,083              3,083              590                  30,833            30,243           24,410              6,167                (18,243)            25,000              37,000            12,000                   
5162 Accounting -$                     125                 125                 -                      1,250              1,250             1,500                250                   (1,250)              1,500                1,500              -                            
5163 Auditing 2,160$             5,000              2,840              22,160             24,400            2,240             2,240                -                       (2,240)              24,400              24,400            -                            
5164 Engineering -$                     2,667              2,667              6,163               26,667            20,504           25,837              5,333                (20,504)            32,000              32,000            -                            
5165 Data Proc/Consultant Services - Other 6,747$             15,508            8,761              245,902           155,077          (90,825)          33,098              31,015              (2,083)              279,000            186,092          (92,908)                 
5167 PCWRA Sewer Fee 21,370$           21,370            -                      213,700           213,700          -                    42,740              42,740              -                       256,440            256,440          -                            
5168 PCWRA Effluent Charges 4,953$             5,841              888                 65,786             106,945          41,159           4,214                2,474                (1,740)              70,000              109,419          39,419                   
5169 Lab Testing 5,517$             1,000              (4,517)             14,628             9,000              (5,628)            (0)                     1,000                1,000               14,628              10,000            (4,628)                   

Total Contract Services 40,746             54,594            13,848            568,929           567,872          (1,057)            134,039            88,979              (45,060)            702,968            656,851          (46,117)                 

Blackbaud -  October 2021 CPMD Rev - Exp.xlsx 11/26/2021 5:55 PM 5



CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
 UNAUDITED

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FOR ONE AND TEN MONTHS; PERIOD ENDING ON OCTOBER 31, 2021
ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER & SEWER

A B C D E F G H I J K L

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE REMAINDER REMAINDER OF VARIANCE FULL BUDGET VARIANCE 
OCTOBER OCTOBER MONTH TO YTD YTD YEAR TO OF THE YEAR OF THE BETWEEN YEAR ANNUAL FULL YEAR

DATE DATE FORECAST YEAR COLUMN FORECAST FORECAST WITH
  BUDGET   G AND H ANNUAL BUDGET COMMENTS

5201 Telephone 669$                591                 (78)                  6,485               5,910              (575)               2,290                1,182                (1,108)              8,775                7,092              (1,683)                   
5203 Natural Gas - WTP # 2 57$                  350                 293                 3,447               3,900              453                1,817                1,100                (717)                 5,264                5,000              (264)                      
5211 Electricity - All Wells 73,803$           57,484            (16,319)           373,854           420,377          46,523           50,560              55,719              5,159               424,414            476,096          51,682                   IREA Rate increase; 9/1/21; 2.25%
5212 Electricity - WTP1 & WTP2 7,951$             8,200              249                 64,617             76,340            11,723           15,889              11,166              (4,723)              80,506              87,506            7,000                     
5213 Electricity - Lift Stations 176$                131                 (45)                  1,736               1,314              (422)               352                   263                   (89)                   2,088                1,577              (511)                      
5214 Electricity - Booster Pump Station 5,059$             3,937              (1,122)             44,062             54,976            10,914           8,042                7,128                (914)                 52,104              62,104            10,000                   
5215 Electricity - Upper Pond 115$                191                 76                   1,115               1,641              526                212                   208                   (4)                     1,327                1,849              522                       
5219 Electricity - Village Lake Irrigation BPS 2,958$             2,015              (943)                22,533             22,451            (82)                 1,136                1,562                426                  23,669              24,013            344                       

Total Utilities 90,788             72,899            (17,888)           517,849           586,909          69,060           80,298              78,328              (1,970)              598,147            665,237          67,090                   

General Overhead
5221 Office Supplies and Printing 94$                  963                 869                 8,877               9,629              752                2,608                1,926                (682)                 11,485              11,555            70                         
5222 Membership Fee -$                     -                     -                      2,471               2,954              483                300                   -                       (300)                 2,771                2,954              183                       
5224 Permits & Filing Charges -$                     -                     -                      1,142               1,142              -                    -                       -                       -                       1,142                1,142              -                            
5225 Postage, Freight and Delivery 770$                833                 63                   8,197               8,333              136                2,266                1,667                (599)                 10,463              10,000            (463)                      
5226 Training & Tuition -$                     775                 775                 1,587               9,400              7,813             3,413                100                   (3,313)              5,000                9,500              4,500                     
5227 Travel, Meetings, Meals -$                     750                 750                 657                  9,500              8,843             4,843                1,000                (3,843)              5,500                10,500            5,000                     
5228 Bad Debt Write-Off -$                     50                   50                   -                      450                450                500                   50                    (450)                 500                   500                 -                            
5230 Bank Service Charges 593$                585                 (8)                    5,661               5,850              189                1,087                1,170                83                    6,748                7,020              272                       
5231 Software 540$                -                     (540)                34,552             43,827            9,275             9,275                -                       (9,275)              43,827              43,827            -                            
5232 Water Conservation 68,318$           -                     (68,318)           405,681           211,577          (194,104)        105,896            -                       (105,896)          511,577            211,577          (300,000)               Additional $300K, apprvd by Brd 2-4-21
5260 Insurance 2,456$             -                     (2,456)             44,330             41,096            (3,234)            -                       -                       -                       44,330              41,096            (3,234)                   

Total General Overhead 72,771             3,956              (68,815)           513,156           343,758          (169,397)        130,188            5,913                (124,275)          643,343            349,671          (293,672)               

Repairs & Maintenance
5301 Well 5,367$             -                     (5,367)             43,144             75,000            31,856           31,856              -                       (31,856)            75,000              75,000            -                            
5302 Water Treatment Plant 9,814$             8,455              (1,359)             128,559           84,547            (44,012)          1,441                16,909              15,468             130,000            101,456          (28,544)                 
5303 Storm Drainage -$                     7,750              7,750              3,456               77,500            74,044           41,544              15,500              (26,044)            45,000              93,000            48,000                   
5304 Sewer Collection R&M 1,424$             19,907            18,483            48,449             139,350          90,901           90,901              -                       (90,901)            139,350            139,350          -                            
5305 Water Distribution Line 27,755$           10,278            (17,477)           180,686           102,781          (77,905)          -                       20,556              20,556             180,686            123,337          (57,349)                 
5306 Meters/Service O & M 2,275$             1,647              (628)                32,925             16,467            (16,458)          -                       3,293                3,293               32,925              19,760            (13,165)                 Additional Hyd Mtrs; Meters/MXU's
5307 Booster Pump Station R&M 221$                1,417              1,196              9,602               14,167            4,565             7,398                2,833                (4,565)              17,000              17,000            -                            
5309 Village Lake Booster Pump Station 4,182$             -                     (4,182)             8,344               20,000            11,656           11,656              -                       (11,656)            20,000              20,000            -                            
5310 Small Equipment < than $5K -$                     -                     -                      17,223             17,500            277                277                   -                       (277)                 17,500              17,500            -                            

Total Repairs & Maintenance 51,037             49,453            (1,584)             472,387           547,311          74,924           185,073            59,092              (125,981)          657,460            606,403          (51,057)                 

Total Operating Expenditures 334,379           279,705          (54,675)           2,849,741        3,017,584       167,843         684,827            442,796            (242,031)          3,534,568         3,460,380       (74,188)                 

Blackbaud -  October 2021 CPMD Rev - Exp.xlsx 11/26/2021 5:55 PM 6



CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
 UNAUDITED

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FOR ONE AND TEN MONTHS; PERIOD ENDING ON OCTOBER 31, 2021  
ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER & SEWER

A B C D E F G H I J K L

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE REMAINDER REMAINDER OF VARIANCE FULL BUDGET VARIANCE 
OCTOBER OCTOBER MONTH TO YTD YTD YEAR TO OF THE YEAR OF THE BETWEEN YEAR ANNUAL FULL YEAR

DATE DATE FORECAST YEAR COLUMN FORECAST FORECAST WITH
  BUDGET   G AND H ANNUAL BUDGET COMMENTS

Non-operating Expenditure
5401 Cost of Meters -$                     813                 813                 17,266             8,125              (9,141)            -                       1,625                1,625               17,266              9,750              (7,516)                   
5402 Rental Equipment 19$                  960                 941                 378                  1,960              1,582             1,682                100                   (1,582)              2,060                2,060              -                            
5403 Water Resources 1,429$             8,612              7,183              48,100             86,120            38,020           15,744              17,224              1,480               63,844              103,344          39,500                   
5426 Wtr & Pwr Auth Loan - Prin - Wtr Trans Line 34,546$           34,376            (170)                68,751             68,752            1                    -                       -                       -                       68,751              68,752            1                           
5427 Wtr & Pwr Auth Loan - Int -Wtr Trans Line 11,099$           11,271            171                 22,541             22,541            0                    -                       -                       -                       22,541              22,541            0                           
5430 DWRF Loan 2006 Principal $2M -$                     -                     -                      117,194           117,192          (2)                  -                       -                       -                       117,194            117,192          (2)                          
5431 DWRF Loan 2006 Interest $2M -$                     -                     -                      27,905             27,905            -                    -                       -                       -                       27,905              27,905            -                            
5432 Paying Agency Fees -$                     -                     -                      -                      -                     -                    1,500                1,500                -                       1,500                1,500              -                            
5433 DWRF Loan 2006 Principal $250K -$                     -                     -                      14,257             14,257            -                    -                       -                       -                       14,257              14,257            -                            
5434 DWRF Loan 2006 Interest $250K -$                     -                     -                      3,726               3,726              -                    -                       -                       -                       3,726                3,726              -                            

Total Non-operating Expenditures 47,094             56,031            8,937              320,118           350,578          30,460           18,925              20,449              1,524               339,043            371,027          31,983                   
         

7234 Long Range Master Plan Update 4,017$             -                     (4,017)             68,007             30,000            (38,007)          -                       -                       -                       68,007              30,000            (38,007)                 
7227 Project Contingency -$                     -                     -                      -                      765,000          765,000         265,000            -                       (265,000)          265,000            765,000          500,000                 To off-set Water Conservation additional budget
7281 Chatfield Reservoir Re-Allocation -$                     -                     -                      -                      -                     -                    207,525            207,500            (25)                   207,525            207,500          (25)                        
7251 Well Construction - LDa-8 1,251$             130,833          129,582          37,743             261,666          223,923         243,784            261,667            17,883             281,527            523,333          241,806                 LDa-8, LDa-14, De-14 to be constructed; $844,580 drilling

7255 2021 GMC Canyon (Replaces 2013 GMC) -$                     -                     -                      37,230             43,587            6,357             6,357                -                       (6,357)              43,587              43,587            -                            
7269 2021 GMC Canyon -$                     -                     -                      37,380             37,387            7                    -                       -                       -                       37,380              37,387            7                           
7270 WTP1 Maintenance Repair Project -$                     -                     -                      248,413           250,000          1,587             -                       -                       -                       248,413            250,000          1,587                     
7215 Well A-12 Pump & Motor, etc 53$                  -                     (53)                  302,758           328,100          25,342           9,307                -                       (9,307)              312,065            328,100          16,035                   Apprvd by Brd 12/29/20; Total A10 & A12 $417,651 (+CO)

7230 Well A-10 Pump & Motor, etc 3,566$             -                     (3,566)             221,573           288,500          66,927           5,794                -                       (5,794)              227,367            288,500          61,133                   Apprvd by Brd 12/29/20; Total A10 & A12 $417,651

7257 UPS System for WTP2 -$                     -                     -                      11,812             -                     (11,812)          -                       -                       -                       11,812              -                      (11,812)                 Unbudgeted Item

7260 Well LDA-12, New Pump & Motor -$                     -                     -                      66,950             200,000          133,050         0                      -                       (0)                     66,950              200,000          133,050                 Apprvd by Brd 2/24/21;Total LDA12 & DE8 $222,991

7265 Well Construction - De-14 1,251$             130,833          129,582          15,498             261,666          246,168         266,029            261,667            (4,361)              281,527            523,333          241,806                 Move Equipment Variance to 2022

7286 Well De8, New Pump & Motor, Pipe -$                     -                     -                      166,247           220,000          53,753           -                       -                       -                       166,247            220,000          53,753                   Apprvd by Brd 2/24/21;Total LDA12 & DE8 $222,991

7292 Well Construction - LDa-14 1,251$             130,833          129,582          15,499             261,666          246,168         266,030            261,668            (4,362)              281,528            523,334          241,806                 Move Equipment Variance to 2022

7242 WTP2 SCADA Server (Replacement) -$                     -                     -                      46,291             50,000            3,709             -                       -                       -                       46,291              50,000            3,709                     
7283 Utility Locator Unit -$                     -                     -                      5,347               -                     (5,347)            -                       -                       -                       5,347                -                      (5,347)                   
7274 BPS1 Transfer System (Replacement) 17,161$           -                     (17,161)           58,407             80,000            21,593           (0)                     -                       0                      58,407              80,000            21,593                   

Total Capital Expenditures 28,549$           392,499$        363,950$        1,339,154        3,077,572       1,738,418      1,269,826         992,503            (277,323)          2,608,980         4,070,075       1,461,095              

Total Expenditures 410,022           728,235          318,213          4,509,013        6,445,733       1,936,721      1,973,578         1,455,748         (517,830)          6,482,591         7,901,481       1,418,891              
 

Excess of Revenues Over (under) Expenditures (105,227)          (440,050)         334,822          786,716           (1,163,401)      1,950,117      (1,218,940)        (686,415)           (532,525)          (432,224)           (1,849,816)      1,417,592              
 

Beginning Fund Balance  13,708,889      13,319,321     389,568         13,708,889       13,319,321       389,568           13,708,889       13,319,321     389,568                 Adj Fund Balance per 2020 Audit
 

Ending Fund Balance  14,495,605      12,155,920     2,339,685      12,489,949$     12,632,906$     (142,957)$        13,276,665$     11,469,505$    1,807,160$            

Blackbaud -  October 2021 CPMD Rev - Exp.xlsx 11/26/2021 5:55 PM 7



  

BOARD MEMBER MANUAL 

AND 

BYLAWS FOR THE 

CASTLE PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Adopted by the Directors of        

 Castle Pines Metropolitan District 

Revised November ___, 2021 



 
DN 6259778.1  

2 

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ....................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

ELECTIONS ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

CANDIDATES' QUALIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES .................................................................................................... 5 

CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS ............................................................................................................................................................ 5 

ORIENTATION OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS ......................................................................................................................... 6 

COMPENSATION................................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

VACANCY ON THE BOARD ........................................................................................................................................................... 6 

ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

DUTIES OF THE OFFICERS ............................................................................................................................................................ 7 

VOTING ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS .................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

BOARD MEETINGS ............................................................................................................................................................................ 8 

AGENDA ................................................................................................................................................................................................. 9 

CONDUCT OF MEETING .............................................................................................................................................................. 10 

GENERAL POWERS OF THE BOARD ...................................................................................................................................... 10 

RELATIONSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD TO THE TAXPAYERS, PROPERTY 
OWNERS AND RATEPAYERS ...................................................................................................................................................... 10 



 
DN 6259778.1  

3 

  

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEWING AND APPROVING DISTRICT EXPENDITURES ....................................... 10 

GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DISTRICT MANAGER TO THE BOARD ................................................ 11 

GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD TO THE DISTRICT MANAGER ................................................ 12 

THE BOARD AND LEGAL COUNSEL ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

THE BOARD AND THE SELECTION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND CONSULTANTS .......................... 13 

BOARD-EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIPS .................................................................................................................................... 14 

THE BOARD AND PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES .................................................................................................................. 14 

THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES .............................................................................................................................................. 15 

THE ANNUAL BUDGET ................................................................................................................................................................. 15 

THE ANNUAL AUDIT ...................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

DEDICATIONS OF DISTRICT FACILITIES ............................................................................................................................. 16 

THE BOARD AND OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AND QUASI-GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES ......................... 16 

DIRECTOR LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS ....................................................................................................................................... 17 

INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS ............................................................................................................................................... 17 

THE PLANNING PROCESS ............................................................................................................................................................ 17 

CODE OF ETHICS ............................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

AMENDING THIS BOARD MEMBER MANUAL AND BYLAWS DOCUMENT ......................................................... 21 

 
 



 
DN 6259778.1  

4 

  

INTRODUCTION 
 
 Castle Pines Metropolitan District, a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, was formed 
in 1973 and is considered a quasi-municipal corporation.  The purpose of the District is to provide water 
treatment and distribution, wastewater collection, street and storm drainage facilities and services to The 
Villages at Castle Pines community.  The District is governed by an elected, five member Board of 
Directors. 
 
 This document is intended to serve as a manual of procedures and bylaws for the Board of 
Directors of the District and the District.  The Board of Directors shall also familiarize themselves with 
the District’s Rules and Regulations and the Employee Handbook.  Procedures herein included have been 
established by Board resolution, by state law, and precedents that have guided the District during past 
years.  The provisions of this Board Member Manual and Bylaws are guidelines and shall in no event limit 
the District’s powers and authority otherwise provided by applicable law.  
 

This Board Member Manual and Bylaws is substantially complete in terms of describing the roles 
and responsibilities of board members and general conduct of the Board. It should be reviewed by all 
board members on a regular basis and items that require specific clarification should become board 
meeting agenda items for resolution. In this manner, the manual should become a living document. 
 

These highlights intend to reinforce Board member compliance with rules and regulations. 
 

The board serves the interests of all residents of The Villages at Castle Pines with regard to water, 
roads and storm water management.  
 

Board members are expected to attend all scheduled board meetings. These include regularly 
scheduled monthly meetings as well as special meetings and workshops scheduled by the Board. 
Attendance in person is highly desirable, although attendance by phone is allowed with prior notice.  

 
All board meetings are noticed and open to the public. 

 
Executive sessions exclude the public and may exclude district staff or consultants and 

contractors, but are limited to discussions on topics established by state statutes. No decisions can be 
made during Executive sessions.  
 

Communications between board members: A conversation between three or more board 
members constitutes a public meeting if District matters are discussed. Emails sent by a board member 
to all the other board members are public documents if the communication refers to district business. A 
majority of then-current board members establishes a quorum. 
 

Direction from the board to the District Manager and District Staff: Unless authorized or directed 
by the board, individual board members are not to issue instructions to the manager or the staff. 
 

Specifics of board member responsibilities are detailed in each item identified in the Table of 
Contents. 

 



 
DN 6259778.1  

5 

  

ELECTIONS 
 
Board members are elected at large from the District for four-year terms with elections being 

held on the first Tuesday in May of odd numbered years consistent with the Special District Act 
(provided, an election will be held in May 2022, and directors elected in 2020 and 2022 will serve 
three-year terms lasting until 2023 and 2025, respectively, as all specials districts elections in the state 
transition from even year to odd year elections).  Elections are conducted on a non-partisan basis.   

 

CANDIDATES' QUALIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES 
  

To qualify as a Director of a special district, a person must be an "eligible elector" of the 
District, defined as a registered voter of Colorado and either: 

 
1. A resident of the district, or 

 
2. The owner (or spouse or civil union partner of the owner) of taxable real or personal 
property situated in the district, or  
 
3. A person (or spouse or civil union partner of the person) who is obligated to pay taxes 
under a contract to purchase taxable property. 

     
Any eligible elector of the District who desires to be a candidate for the office of Director 

shall file a self-nomination and acceptance form or letter signed by a registered elector as a witness to 
the signature of the candidate.  The self-nomination and acceptance form or letter shall be filed with 
the District’s designated election official not less than 67 days prior to the date of the election.  Once 
the petition has been executed and verified as meeting the necessary requirements, the designated 
election official shall certify the candidate to the ballot for the election. 
  

Director qualifications must be met at the time of the execution of the self-nomination and 
acceptance form or letter (or of appointment by the Board of Directors, if filling a vacancy), and must 
be maintained in order to remain qualified as a Director.  
 
 A Director may not serve more than two (2) consecutive terms. Terms are consecutive unless 
they are at least four years apart.  Term limits do not apply to appointed or elected interim terms that 
arise due to a vacancy. 

 

CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS 
  

The Board of Directors will ensure the conduct of all elections in accordance with the Special 
District Act.  Unless circumstances justify otherwise, all elections shall be conducted by mail ballot 
instead of by polling place only. In addition, all elections shall be coordinated with the Douglas County 
Clerk’s office, unless the Clerk’s office is unable to do so. If the Clerk’s office is unable to coordinate 
a District election, the District should engage a third party contractor with appropriate experience and 



 
DN 6259778.1  

6 

  

expertise to conduct the election, rather than utilizing District staff.  

 

NOTICE TO ELECTORS 
  

No more than sixty days prior to and not later than January 15 of each year, the Board shall 
provide the transparency notice to the eligible electors of the District in the manner set forth in C.R.S. 
§ 32-1-809. 

 

ORIENTATION OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 
 
 The Board and District Manager will provide an opportunity for new and hold-over members 
to attend an orientation and training program as soon as practicable following each election and/or 
appointment, which may include Board/District Manager/Legal Counsel orientation sessions, a 
discussion and overview of this Board Member Manual and Bylaws, pertinent literature and materials, 
visitations and tours. 

 

COMPENSATION 
 
 Each Director may receive as compensation for his/her service on the Board $100 per District 
meeting attended (including regular meetings, special meetings, and study/work sessions), not to 
exceed $2,400 in total per annum. Directors may receive reimbursement for actual expenses incurred 
by directors in service as directors, including but not limited to mileage and out-of-pocket expenses.  
Such reimbursement shall not be considered compensation. 
 
 No Director shall receive any compensation as an employee of the District. 

 

VACANCY ON THE BOARD 
 
 If a vacancy on the Board occurs for any reason, it is the Board's responsibility to appoint a 
new Director within 60 days except for good cause.  The appointment shall be evidenced in the 
minutes of the meeting and the Board shall cause a notice of appointment to be delivered to the 
person appointed.  Each appointee will serve as a Board member until the next regular election at 
which time the remainder of the term to which the member was appointed, if any, will be filled by 
election.  The Board may appoint an individual that has served 2 consecutive four-year terms to fill a 
vacancy.   

 

ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 
 



 
DN 6259778.1  

7 

  

 At the District’s regular meeting in May of each calendar year, or as soon thereafter as 
practicable, the Board will elect the following officers: Chairperson of the Board/President of the 
District, Treasurer, and Secretary.  The Secretary position is not required to be filled by a Board 
member.  Vice-Chairperson of the Board/Vice-President of the District is an optional office. An 
individual may serve in multiple offices in the discretion of the Board, except that one person cannot 
be the Chairperson and Treasurer, or the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson. 

 

DUTIES OF THE OFFICERS 
 
 The Chairperson shall be responsible for calling regular meetings and special meetings 
(including study/work sessions) and will preside at and conduct meetings of the Board.  The 
Chairperson will sign appropriate documents, including contracts, on behalf of the District.  The 
Chairperson has the authority to delegate these responsibilities to any of the other Board members or 
to staff in the Chairperson’s discretion. 
  
 The Vice-Chairperson, if appointed, will preside at and conduct meetings of the Board in the 
absence of the Chairperson. 
 
 The Treasurer shall direct that strict and accurate accounts be kept of all money received by 
and disbursed for and on behalf of the District, and will review the listing of monthly expenditures 
for reasonableness before they are submitted to the Board for approval for payment.  The Treasurer 
shall file a corporate fidelity bond with the Clerk of the Court, at the expense of the District, in an 
amount not less than $5,000, conditioned on the faithful performance of the duties of the office.   
 
 The Secretary shall keep, or cause to have kept, in a visual text format that may be transmitted 
electronically, a record of all Board proceedings, minutes of all meetings, certificates, contracts, bonds 
given by employees, and all corporate acts, which shall be open to inspection of all electors, as well as 
to all other interested parties, in accordance with applicable law.   The Secretary shall attest all 
documents and contracts requiring attestation. 

 

VOTING 
 
 Each Board member shall have one vote on all questions before the Board. Voting by proxy 
is not permitted.  

 

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS 
 
 Amendment 41 was a citizen initiative adopted by Colorado voters in the 2006 general 
election.  One of the three sections was the restrictions on gifts to elected officials such as Board 
members.  Gifts with a value exceeding $50 per calendar year, subject to adjustment for inflation, are 
prohibited.  There are a few exceptions to the gift law, including, but not limited to, gifts given between 
friends and relatives on special occasions, certain campaign contributions, unsolicited awards of 



 
DN 6259778.1  

8 

  

appreciation and gifts or things of value that are a component of compensation paid to the Board 
Member in the normal course of employment. 

 

BOARD MEETINGS 
 
 The Board of Directors shall set its regular meeting schedule within thirty days before or after 
January 1 of each year for the following calendar year.  Such regular meetings may be rescheduled with 
proper notice.   
 
 Proper notice of all regular and special meetings (including study/work sessions) shall be 
posted at least twenty-four hours before the meeting at the District’s designated posting location.  
 
 A majority of the then-serving Board members constitutes a quorum for the purposes of 
holding Board meetings and transacting business. 
 
 All business of the District will be transacted in public Board meetings, except as provided for 
by law. 
 
 Meeting agendas and accompanying documents will be made available to each Director at least 
48 hours prior to meetings.  Each Director shall study and review contents of the Board packets and 
the upcoming business items, review the minutes of prior meetings, review budget statement 
preparation, and come to meetings prepared to discuss and review the matters before the Board. 
 
 If a Board member is unable to attend a regular meeting or special meeting (including 
study/work sessions), he/she should contact either another Board member or the District Manager, 
informing them of the need to be absent and, if there are any opinions, considerations, or comments 
this Board member would like to have brought to the Board, he/she should pass them on to another 
Board Member.  Failure to attend three consecutive regular meetings will result in the mandatory 
removal of the Director, unless the Board’s approval of such absences is entered in the minutes, or 
temporary mental or physical disability or illness excuses the absence, except as provided by law.  Only 
those members in attendance at Board meetings will vote on the issues presented.  Attendance includes 
physical, telephonic or electronic attendance; but, this media of attendance should be used 
intermittently and not as a regular course of conduct.   
 
 From time to time, the need may arise for Board direction in between scheduled meetings.  In 
this case, Board members may be polled by phone or by email for their direction on certain matters; 
provided, in such instances all five Board members shall be polled, and any polling conducted by 
Board members shall be in compliance with the Colorado Open Meetings Law (Sections 24-6-401 and 
-402, C.R.S.).  Such phone or email poll direction must be approved by the Board at the next scheduled 
Board meeting.    
 
 An executive or "closed" session may only be called at regular or special meetings of the Board 
by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the quorum present consistent with Colorado law.  Executive 
sessions should be noted on the agenda for all meetings whenever possible.  They shall be recorded 
and recordings shall be kept in accordance with applicable law.  Consistent with law, one or more of 



 
DN 6259778.1  

9 

  

the following topics provided by § 24-6-402(4), C.R.S., for a valid executive session must generally be 
announced by the Board and reflected in the minutes: 
 

1. Purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer or sale of any property interest; 
2. Conferences with an attorney for the District regarding legal advice on specific legal 

questions; 
3. Matters required to be kept confidential by federal or state law or rules and regulations; 
4. Security arrangements or investigations; 
5. Determining positions relative to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations 

and instructing negotiators;  
6. Personnel matters, except if the subject employee(s) request(s) an open meeting. 
7. Consideration of any documents protected by the mandatory nondisclosure provisions 

of the Colorado Open Records Act, § 24-72-204, C.R.S. 
 
 The Board shall not adopt any proposed policy, position, resolution, rule, or regulation, or 
take formal action while in executive session. 
 

Board members and others present in an executive session shall not disclose the contents of 
the discussion that took place in the executive session except to other Board members, as directed by 
the Board, or as required by law. Board members are aware that attorney-client privileged information 
shared between the Board members and the District’s legal counsel may no longer be considered 
privileged if such information is shared outside the District.  Disclosure of the content of the 
discussion of an executive session in contravention of this provision may be a breach of a Board 
member’s duty to the District. 

 

AGENDA 
 
 Each agenda for Board meetings will contain the order of business for each meeting and will 
be distributed to the Board members prior to the meetings. 
 
 The business items and order of business items may be rearranged or amended by vote of the 
Board at a meeting.  The District Manager shall prepare each initial draft agenda and the Chairperson, 
with input from staff members and other Board members, shall determine the items of business to be 
included within the final agenda.  Requests by the public for items to be included within the agenda 
shall be made prior to a Board meeting and shall be submitted in writing in the format prescribed by 
the District.  Items may be designated for action, discussion or public hearing as appropriate.  The 
agenda may be amended, and additional items included, at the public meeting as a majority of the 
Board members present at the meeting may determine.  Upon majority vote of the Board members 
present at the meeting, items may be moved from discussion to action. The Board may approve 
various items by consent, as appropriate, in the Board’s discretion. 

 



 
DN 6259778.1  

10 

  

CONDUCT OF MEETING  
 
 It is anticipated that only directors will participate in the business discussions of the Board.  
Staff members and Board consultants may be invited by the Board to participate, as appropriate.   
 

Public participation in the Board’s business is invited.  Members of the public who wish to 
address the Board on a specific agenda item should so indicate in advance of the meeting and will be 
given a limited opportunity to do so, at the discretion of the Board, prior to the Board’s discussion of 
an agenda item. 

 

GENERAL POWERS OF THE BOARD 
 
 For the purposes of providing water, sanitation, street and storm drainage services within the 
District, and on its behalf, the Board shall have all of the powers enumerated in and consistent with 
Title 32 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, the District’s Service Plan and any other powers authorized 
by law. 

 

RELATIONSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD TO THE 
TAXPAYERS, PROPERTY OWNERS AND RATEPAYERS 
 
 Since the Board is elected at large, each Board member is responsible to taxpayers, property 
owners and ratepayers throughout the entire District, with no special consideration being shown 
toward any specific program, special interest, or geographic area within the District’s boundaries. 
 
 The Board will conduct its affairs in a manner that evokes public respect and support for the 
District and guarantees its integrity to the community. 
 
 It is the goal of the Board to operate in a manner that is respectful of the needs of all District 
taxpayers, property owners and ratepayers. 
 
 Board members should be ready to listen to criticism and be quick to discern and address 
situations that require correction. 

 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEWING AND APPROVING DISTRICT 
EXPENDITURES 
 
 The Board has established criteria for the payment of bills, which are herein set forth.  The 
staff shall review all bills and if they meet the established criteria, shall pay them in a timely fashion 
subsequent to the Treasurer’s review and Board approval of the expenditures.  The following are the 
criteria to be met:    
 



 
DN 6259778.1  

11 

  

1. The expenditures cannot exceed the budgeted total expenditures for that fund without 
approving an amended budget. 
 

2. The expenditure must be for a public purpose (although the expenditure may also 
benefit a private purpose or entity). 

 
3. The expenditure must be documented in such a manner that Board members can 

determine the amount, nature, purpose and authorization of the payment and to whom 
the payment was made.   

 
4. The expenditure must be for goods or services actually received or performed for a 

Board-approved purpose. 
 
5. The expenditure shall match the amount of the invoice and, if applicable, be within 

the contract amount for the product or service. 
 
6. In the event a major emergency relating to a District facility or function arises which 

threatens the operation of such facility or function, and the District Manager deems it 
necessary to correct the emergency situation without prior Board approval, the staff 
shall authorize such repairs or services as are necessary, pay the related charges, and 
advise the Board as soon as practicable. 

 
After the conclusion of due diligence by staff regarding the appropriateness of payment, the verified 
prior month’s invoices shall be presented to the Board as accounts payable at the next public Board 
meeting.  The Board's action to approve the payment of the bills through authorizing the related 
expenditures after appropriate consideration illustrates awareness of fiscal responsibility and 
accountability to the citizens concerning the expenditure of tax revenues and other public funds.  

 

GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DISTRICT MANAGER TO THE 
BOARD 
 
The District Manager shall have the following responsibilities to the Board: 
 

♦ To plan, organize, and administer quality programs in the areas of operation and maintenance 
of facilities and grounds, public relations, and all related District functions and services. To 
promulgate innovative ideas for Board consideration and to at all times utilize initiative. 

 
♦ To select, train, supervise, and direct activities of all District employees. 
 
♦ To submit recommendations to the Board on all items requiring Board action.  To supply 

complete, accurate reports to the Board to assist the Board in making decisions. 
 
♦ To carry out duties, to implement Board policy, and at the Board's direction to act on behalf 

of the Board and District. 
 



 
DN 6259778.1  

12 

  

♦ To prepare, explain and submit to the Board of Directors the annual budget.   Upon Board 
approval, to administer, control, and balance the budget, and to provide regular financial 
reporting to the Board of Directors. 

 
♦ To expend funds for items up to $50,000 in amount specifically identified in and consistent 

with the District’s approved annual budget without specific authorization by the Board. 
 
♦ To expend funds for items up to $25,000 in amount not specifically identified in the District’s 

approved annual budget, provided such expenditures shall never exceed the Board’s total 
approved appropriations.  

 
♦ To approve form agreements previously approved by the Board, including SIA/IGA 

agreements. 
 
♦ To manage all District activities with integrity, in an ethical manner, and in a way which will 

produce the most favorable benefits to the District and its taxpayers. 
 
♦ To represent the Board in all matters concerning the District's employees. 
 
♦ To work with the Board Chairperson to create the meeting agenda and all supporting 

documents for Board consideration at meetings and study sessions. 
 
♦ To provide direct reports to the Board on District matters. 

 

GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD TO THE DISTRICT 
MANAGER 
 
The Board has responsibility for hiring and terminating the District Manager and for establishing 
his/her compensation and benefits.  The Board may appoint an interim District Manager, as necessary.  
In addition, the Board has the responsibility: 
 

♦   To review, at least annually, the District Manager’s performance in managing the District, 
consider the appropriate assignment of duties, and determine annual compensation and fringe 
benefits. 

 
♦ To review annually the compensation and benefits of all of the direct reports to the District 

Manager.  
 
♦ To work with the District Manager in carrying out the statutory responsibilities of the Board. 
 
♦ To keep in proper perspective the appropriate Board-District Manager relationship.  The 

Board shall manage, control, and supervise all of the business and affairs of the District and 
all construction, installation, operation, and maintenance of District improvements, as 
provided in C.R.S. § 32-1-1001(h).  

 



 
DN 6259778.1  

13 

  

♦ To provide necessary policy decisions for the administration of the District and to charge the 
District Manager with the responsibility to uniformly carry out such policies. 

 
♦ To carefully analyze recommendations made by the staff, through the District Manager, based 

on factual data, staff expertise, community needs, and enhancement of the District as a whole. 
 
♦ To encourage initiative and the creation of innovative ideas on the part of administration for 

Board consideration. 
 
Individual Board member-District Manager communication is encouraged; however because the 
Board functions as a unit, individual instruction is not to be directed by a single Board member except 
as related to a specific assignment as authorized by Board action.  Any memorandum or 
correspondence initiated by any Board member concerning Board business shall be advanced through 
its Chairman.   

  

THE BOARD AND LEGAL COUNSEL 
 
 It is the sole responsibility of the Board to retain the services of legal counsel.  The Board, the 
District Manager and legal counsel, subject to approval by the Board, shall negotiate legal counsel’s 
fee arrangement at the time of budget adoption. 
 
 Legal counsel is responsible to: 
 

1. Advise the Board and staff on all legal matters concerning the District's business. 
 
2. Prepare legal documents, including contracts and resolutions, for the District, at Board 

request. 
 
3. Prior to Board approval, review all documents referred by the District to counsel, and 

make recommendations concerning content and/or legal correctness, and 
compatibility with appropriate statutes. 

 
4. Be present at all Board meetings, or as deemed necessary by the Board of Directors. 
 
5. Legal counsel is responsible to the Board as a whole and should not accept direction, 

or undertake work on behalf of any individual Board member unless the Board has so 
authorized. 

 

THE BOARD AND THE SELECTION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND 
CONSULTANTS 
 
 The Board is responsible for the selection of various consultants and service providers, and 
has the prerogative of selecting without the bidding process architects, engineers, attorneys, insurance 



 
DN 6259778.1  

14 

  

agents, auditors, and other professional consulting or service agents as necessary in the Board’s 
discretion.  Generally, these services are to be contracted in the following way: 
 

1. The Board and/or the District Manager determines that such services are necessary and 
establishes the criteria for selecting a service provider.   

 
2. Budget allocations are identified or established for such services. 
 
3. Staff and/or Board researches qualified consultants or service organizations to 

determine the best possible candidates to provide the required services. 
 
4. The Board may choose the individual or organization that meets the District's 

specifications, pursuant to recommendations by staff and/or the responsible 
committee. 

 
Some services are provided on a continuing basis, i.e., auditing, insurance, etc., and the Board has 
determined that it shall review those services on a periodic basis, as determined by the Board.  The 
review does not necessarily call for a complete interview process, but the Board must be assured that 
the services are rendered in a professionally appropriate manner, with reasonable and affordable fees, 
and that the consultants continue to provide the best possible services to the District. 

 

BOARD-EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIPS 
 
 The Board authorizes the District Manager to maintain total management of District 
personnel.  This authority includes selection, assignment, training, supervision, promotion, demotion, 
or termination of District staff.  The Board, however, does maintain certain aspects of management 
of District employees as follows:  

 
1. Annually, or as needed, the District Manager meets with the District's department 

heads for the purpose of discussing salary plans, fringe benefits, and general working 
conditions.  The District Manager will then present a proposal annually, or as needed, 
for budget considerations, pertaining to proposed modifications in salary plans, fringe 
benefits, and working conditions.  The Board will then establish District compensation 
standards for the ensuing year. 

 
2. Employee grievances will be handled as outlined in the District’s employee handbook. 

Board members are encouraged to communicate with District employees. However, 
supervision, direction, instructions, requests, and reprimands of any employee must 
be handled directly through the office of the District Manager. 

 

THE BOARD AND PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES 
 
 With the Board's endorsement, the Directors are encouraged to participate actively in local, 
state, and national organizations dealing with the business and affairs of the District.  When feasible, 



 
DN 6259778.1  

15 

  

Board members are encouraged to attend seminars, conferences, educational and training programs 
sponsored by these recognized professional organizations.  When attending such functions on behalf 
of the District, upon approval of the Board, the District shall pay for the Board member's necessary 
and reasonable expense. 

 

THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES 
 
 To assist the Board in District planning and special interest areas, the Board may establish and 
appoint committees to make recommendations.  Such committees exist and all committee members 
serve at the pleasure of the Board.  The scope of their activities and their recommendations will be 
specified by the Board at the time of their appointment. 

 

THE ANNUAL BUDGET 
 
 The Board is responsible, by statute, to approve, and submit to the appropriate governmental 
agencies, an annual budget.  The following steps are required in the budget process: 
 

1. The District Manager and Accounting Supervisor shall prepare a preliminary draft of 
the proposed budget and submit that document to the Board for review.  The Board 
has the prerogative of revising the proposed budget or any part thereof.  After directed 
revisions are made, additional study sessions may be held to further review the budget 
as necessary. 

 
2. After the Board preliminarily approves the budget, the proposed figures are made 

available at the District’s office for public inspection.  Proper legal notices are posted 
and published and include notification to taxpayers that the Board has called a public 
meeting for the purpose of conducting a hearing on the budget, and that the proposed 
annual budget may be inspected at the District’s office prior to the public hearing in 
accordance with the “Local Government Budget Law of Colorado,” part 1 of article 
1 of title 29, C.R.S. 

 
3. A public hearing shall be held before each annual budget is adopted and the District’s 

annual mill levy is certified.  At the public hearing, the budget is presented and citizen 
comments are heard.  The Board may revise, alter, increase or decrease the budget 
items as it deems necessary.  The Board shall enact a resolution adopting the budget 
and making appropriations for the budget year. 

 
4. The approved annual budget is effective on January 1 of the ensuing year. 

 

THE ANNUAL AUDIT 
 
 It is the Board's responsibility to select a certified public accountant as an independent auditor, 
responsible directly to the Board, to annually examine the fiscal records of the District in accordance 



 
DN 6259778.1  

16 

  

with generally accepted accounting principles and to supply to the Board a comprehensive audit report 
based on that firm's findings. The Board, at a public meeting, shall accept the annual audit report with 
copies to be submitted to the Division of Local Government and the State Auditor, State of Colorado.  
The audit process should be completed no later than June 30 for those records reflecting the fiscal 
activities of the immediate previous year.  All audit findings are submitted to the Board.  The audit, 
when accepted by the Board, is available for inspection by the public at the District’s office. 
 

DEDICATIONS OF DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 
 As various District facilities are developed and completed for the public's use, it may be fitting 
that ceremonies of dedication be scheduled.  Board and/or staff may make suitable arrangements for 
programming at such public dedications, including involvement by Board members and, when 
appropriate, by elected officials from other political entities, citizen groups, civic associations and so 
forth. 

 

THE BOARD AND OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AND QUASI-
GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 
 
 The Board may appoint Board members to act as liaison with other political subdivisions, 
community groups, cities, towns and counties located within proximity to the District.  The appointed 
Board member shall attend such meetings of such political subdivisions, community groups, cities, 
towns and counties as are necessary, and generally advise the District and such political subdivisions, 
community groups, cities, towns and counties in areas of mutual concern and activity. 
 
 The District Manager and the staff, at the District Manager's direction, shall maintain liaison 
with the staff of such political subdivisions, community groups, cities, towns and counties. 
 
 Individual Board members and staff may not commit the District or make major policy 
decisions regarding any assigned or spontaneous relationships with any outside organizations or 
individuals without full Board authorization. 
 
 It is the policy of the Board to hold joint meetings with representatives of other political 
subdivisions, community groups, cities, towns and counties as necessary or in the best interests of the 
District. 

 



 
DN 6259778.1  

17 

  

DIRECTOR LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 
 
 In addition to serving as liaison representatives to other organizations and governmental 
entities, from time to time individual Directors may serve as representatives of the Board to major 
projects.  Directors acting in this capacity may attend, for example, all planning meetings with civic 
associations or representatives from other agencies regarding a specific development, or may become 
involved with discussions with developers or landowners regarding potential purchase or donation of 
sites.   
 
 These liaison assignments are not meant to be in lieu of staff endeavors but usually concern 
areas of negotiation, major financial consideration or contractual agreements, civic associations, or 
other areas that would involve District policy. 

 

INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS 
  
 These matters are governed by state statute and the necessary steps are outlined to effect the 
change of boundaries of the District.  The Board has authority to include additional areas into the 
District as well as to exclude areas by complying with the legal procedures outlined in the statutes 
governing special districts and the District’s Rules and Regulations.     

 

THE PLANNING PROCESS 
 
 The Board has developed a financial plan and infrastructure analysis, which includes 
long-range plans and goals for the District's capital development and acquisition programs.   
 
 Since long-range planning serves only as a guide, changes do occur and it is the prerogative of 
the Board to add or delete projects or phases of projects previously included in the long-range plan.  
Generally, the Board adopts the annual capital improvements budget items based on priority projects. 
 
 Projects, which involve significant capital expenditures and/or development costs, follow 
procedures established by the Board, generally including the following: 
 

1. The project is identified within budget parameters, public need and desirability, and 
with general or specific use and facility features determined. 

 
2. Staff has conducted various surveys, studies, and gathered necessary data so that an 

initial design phase (land use study or architectural concept) can be initiated.  Board 
members' thoughts and input are desirable during this early planning stage.  This step 
occurs whether the project will be designed by in-house staff or through consultants 
selected by the Board. 

 
3. Once the preliminary input has been gathered, the preliminary plan is developed and 

then submitted to the Board for review and revision, if appropriate. 
 



 
DN 6259778.1  

18 

  

4. Appropriate community groups, homeowners, cities, school districts, and other 
interested parties, may be contacted to solicit input. 

 
5. During the entire planning process, Board and staff shall be mindful of the District's 

planning documents, factual data, sound design criteria, public input and other agency 
approval, and of the budget parameters of the project. 

 

CODE OF ETHICS 
 

a. Introduction 
 

The constituents of the District are entitled to have a fair, ethical, and accountable local 
government that has earned the public’s full confidence for integrity. The District adopts this Code 
of Ethics as part of this Board Member Manual and Bylaws to assure public confidence in local 
government and its effective and fair operation and to ensure that the District complies with all 
applicable State and local laws relating to conflicts of interest and ethics.  
 
 Integrity in government requires that decision-makers be independent, impartial, and 
accountable to those they serve, to that end, all Directors and staff of the District must carry out their 
duties in accordance with the following principles:  
 

1. As public servants, Board Members are stewards of the public trust, entrusted 
with and responsible for the property and resources of the Members and shall carry out their duties 
for the benefit of the constituents of the District.  

 
2. The constituents of the District expect and deserve their public servants to act 

with courtesy, impartiality, honesty, and openness in the performance of their duties.  
 
3. The Board and all staff of the District must always perform their duties on 

behalf of the District with the best interests of the District in mind, and not for any personal interest 
or for the interest of family, friends, or business and political associates.  

 
4. Governmental decisions and policies are made utilizing the proper channels of 

the government structure, free of coercive or other improper influence.  
 
5. To gain and retain public confidence in government operations, the Board and 

all staff and consultants of the District must avoid even the appearance of impropriety.  
 
 b. Intent 
 
 The purpose of this Code of Ethics is to provide the Board and all staff of the District the 
tools and resources necessary to conduct themselves in the most ethical and appropriate manner 
possible and to ensure that the District operates in accordance with its mission, governing principles, 
and values.  
 
 It is the intent of the District that the Board and all staff of the District adhere to high levels 




